ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE

HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON FI SHERI ES

March 18, 2002

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Represent at i
Represent at i
Represent at i
Represent at i
Represent at i
Represent at i
Represent at i

ve
ve
ve
ve
ve
ve
ve

VEMBERS ABSENT

Gary Stevens,
Peggy W/ son,
Drew Scal zi
Fred Dyson
John Coghi |
Mary Kapsner
Beth Kerttul a

Al l nmenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 46

3:36 p. m

Co-Chair
Co-Chair

Rel ating to the noratoriumon fish farmng in British Col onbi a.

- MOVED CSHIJR 46(FSH) OQUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI QUS ACTI ON

BILL: HIR 46

SHORT TI TLE: BC MORATORI UM ON FI SH FARM NG

SPONSOR( S): FI SHERI ES
Jrn-Date Jrn- Page

02/ 19/ 02 2308 (H
02/ 19/ 02 2308 (H
03/ 04/ 02 (H
03/ 04/ 02 (H
03/ 18/ 02 (H

W TNESS REG STER

JEAN ELLI'S, Staff
to Representative Peggy WIson
Al aska State Legislature
Capi tol Building, Room 409
Juneau, Al aska 99801

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE

Action
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
FSH, RES
FSH AT 3: 30 PM CAPI TOL 124
Schedul ed But Not Heard
FSH AT 3:30 PM CAPI TOL 124

-1- March 18, 2002



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HIJIR 46 on behalf of the House
Speci al Commttee on Fisheries, sponsor.

DOUG MECUM Director

Di vi sion of Commercial Fisheries

Al aska Departnment of Fish & Gane

P. O. Box 25526

Juneau Al aska 99802-5526

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified during hearing on HIR 46 about
the threats of farned sal non.

SUE ASPELUND

Cordova District Fisherman United (CDFU)

P. O Box 939

Cordova, Alaska 99574

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 46.

AURAH LANDAU

Sout heast Al aska Conservati on Council (SEACC)

419 6th Street

Juneau, Al aska 99801

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HIR 46 on behal f of
SEACC.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-9, SIDE A
Number 0001

CO CHAIR PEGGY WLSON called the House Special Conmttee on
Fisheries neeting to order at 3:36 p.m Menbers present at the
call to order were Representatives Kerttula, Dyson, Scalzi,
Stevens, and WI|son. Representatives Coghill and Kapsner joined
the neeting as it was in progress.

HIR 46- BC MORATORI UM ON FI SH FARM NG

CO- CHAIR WLSON announced that the matter before the commttee
was HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 46, Relating to the noratorium on
fish farming in British Col onbi a.

Nunber 0120

CO CHAIR STEVENS nmde a notion to adopt the proposed conmttee
substitute (CS) for HIR 46, version 22-1LS1582\J, Ut ernohle,

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 2- March 18, 2002



2/ 25/ 02, for purposes of discussion. There being no objection
Version J was adopted as the work draft.

Nunber 0154

JEAN ELLIS, Staff to Representative Peggy WIson, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, explained HIR 46 on behalf of the House Speci al
Commttee on Fisheries, sponsor. The bill requests that the
government of British Colunbia reinstate the noratorium on
finfish farmng. She said the noratorium had been in place for

several years but had been renoved. This renoval would becone
effective at the end of April. Ms. Ellis said she had worked
with Representatives Kerttula and Dyson on the issue. She

expressed her feeling that the proposed CS had taken care of
sone of the concerns that mght have been raised about accuracy
inthe first version.

M5. ELLIS listed various supporting statenents that had been
included in the bill packets.

Number 0390
M5. ELLIS read the sponsor statenent for HIR 46. She said:

On January 31, 2002, the Governnent of British
Col unmbi a announced that the provincial noratorium on
fish farming would be lifted. This decision could
have a substantial effect on the Al askan econony and
environment, both directly and indirectly.

This resolution strongly encourages the Governnent of
British Colunbia to reinstate the noratorium on fish
farm ng.

In 2001 there were 29,000 accidental releases of
farmed fish from British Colunbia salnmon farns.
Escaped farnmed Atlantic salnon have been caught in
Al aska conmmercial fisheries. The escaped Atlantic
salnon pose a threat to Alaska s marine environnent
and the ecol ogy of Pacific Sal non.

Escaped Atlantic salnon fromfarnms in British Col unbia
are now spawning in approximately 80 streanms on the
West  Coast . These escaped sal non conpete with wld
Al askan salnmon for food, and there 1is continuing
concern with possible disease transfers.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 3- March 18, 2002



Seafood is Alaska’s nunber one international export,
and the comercial fishing industry is Alaskas
| ar gest private-sector enployer.

Therefore, the Fisheries Commttee strongly encourages
t he Al aska State Legi sl ature to support t he
reinstatenment of the British Colunbia noratorium on
fish farm ng.

Number 0512

CO CHAI R STEVENS asked what changes were nade to the original
bill by the proposed CS.

MS. ELLIS said the changes were nostly to make snmall, technica
corrections. She gave the exanple of the change from | anguage
that read "native Alaska wild salnon" to "native wild sal non"
with regard to disease transfer. She listed other exanples of
t echni cal changes.

Number 0717

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL took issue with the resolution's claim
that seafood is Alaska's nunber one export. He said that oil
was the state's |argest export.

Nunber 0738

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON corrected Representative Coghill by
pointing out that all of Alaska's oil goes to domestic markets,
nost of themin Washi ngton and O egon.

Nunber 0769

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON proposed an anendnent to page 2, line 3.
He suggested inserting the word "escaped" between "Wereas" and
"farmed".

Nunber 0814

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI noved to adopt the foregoing as Amendnent
1. There being no objection, the anendnment was adopt ed.

Nunmber 0848

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -4- March 18, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE DYSON offered [Anmendnent 2]. He suggested
inserting "Al aska" between "80" and "streans" on page 2, line 8.

Number 0910

DOUG MECUM Director, D vision of Commercial Fisheries, Al aska
Departnent of Fish & Gane, testified before the committee. He
said there have been alnost 400,000 reported escaped Atlantic
sal non since 1991, and he added that nobst escapes go unreported.
There is very little nmonitoring or enforcenment of the farns.
There have been three docunented recoveries of Atlantic sal non
in Al askan fresh waters.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON wi t hdr ew Anendnent 2.
Number 1020

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON proposed Anendnent 3, on page 2, |ine 20.
He suggested changing "Alaska |[State] Legislature strongly
supports the reinstatenent of the British Colunbia noratorium on
fish farmng" to "Alaska [State] Legislature requests the
reinstatenent of the [British Colunbia] noratorium on fish
farmng until Alaskans can be assured that all possible steps
have been taken to preclude further escapes of farmed fish."

Nunber 1043

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI noved to adopt the foregoing as Amendnent
3.

Nunber 1067

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA said she did not |ike the anmendnent
because she does not |ike fish farmng, even wthout escaped
fish. She said there are nyriad problems with fish farmng

outside of the economic [repercussions for Alaska' s fisheries].
Pollution and destruction of estuaries were two other reasons
she gave for not supporting fish farm ng.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON said the danger to [Alaska] is escaped
fish. What [the British Colunbians] do to their own waters is

"kind of their business.” He said British Colunbia has its own
econom c problens it is trying to deal with. He said, "W can't
tell them 'Don't conpete with us.'"™ He said [Al aska] can tell

British Colunbia to not "nmess up our fish and our waters."

Number 1200

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 5- March 18, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI agreed with Representative Dyson's point.
He said the state's concern should not be an econom c one.

Nunmber 1289

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA said she appreciated the point of not
interfering with other governnents, but said she did not think
it wong to have broader concerns about the environnent. She
said she would go further [than the present |anguage in the
bill]. She said [the British Colunbia governnent] could assure
Al askans by witing a letter [that nore fish wll not escape].

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON pointed out that he did not say ["assure
Al askans"]; he said until "Al askans are assured".

Nunmber 1368

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA suggested that the |anguage at | east
state, "until Al askans are assured that there is no escapenent”.

Number 1438

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA noved to amend Amendnent 3 to say,
"until Al askans are assured there will be no negative inpacts on
Al askan waters or fishery resources".

Nunmber 1480

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON wondered if that |anguage "would water it
down. " He warned there mght be dangers unapparent, but the
only real danger he could see was escaped fish surviving and
spawning in [Al aska's] streans. He said he was not sure if
Representative Kerttula' s anendnent [to Amendnent 3] was
stronger or not.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA said she thought it was stronger because
it says, "no negative inpacts".

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON made it known he did not want to hold the
bill up for that.

Number 1508
MR MECUM told the commttee the issue of escapes was anplified

by a [British Colunbia] auditor general's report that proclained
escapes of less than 5 percent as acceptable. He posited that

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 6- March 18, 2002



as long as [British Colunbial] is wlling to allow sone |evel of
escapes - that could be in the order of hundreds of thousands of
fish - the departnent has a problemwith that. That is why the
departnent is supporting the resolution to keep the noratorium
from being lifted. He pointed out that the ability to show no
negative inpact is a nuch tougher standard to docunent.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA rel ented, saying she would be satisfied
with the original |anguage.

Nunber 1607
REPRESENTATI VE DYSON nentioned he had read somewhere that there
had been a transmssion [of disease] to chum salnon near

Vancouver | sl and.

MR MECUM said Atlantic salmobn were infected, but it was

believed to be from sockeye salnon. He said [infectious
hemat opoi etic necrosis virus] was being transferred from wld
stocks to [farmed] stocks. He characterized this as dangerous
because the wild salnon swimmng by the net pens near the Nass
and Skeena Rivers - two large sockeye producers - could be
i nf ect ed. He also said he was concerned about escaped farned
salnon with the disease. He stated that a fish farm could

becone a "di sease sink."

Nunber 1700
REPRESENTATI VE DYSON used colorful netaphors to illustrate the
initial tenor of the language in his first draft. He assured

the commttee he had toned it down with the new version.
Number 1757

CO CHAI R STEVENS asked Representative Dyson whom he was asking
to do what.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON asked that page 2, line 20 becone the first
"Resol ved", to ask that British Colunmbia reinstate the
nor at ori um He said that the [U S. Departnent of State] would
be asked to pay attention and "hold this big club" when
negotiating over the North Anerican Free Trade Agreenent or the
Pacific Salnon Treaty [with Canada]. He said he was open to
better wordi ng and anendnents.

Nunber 1827

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -7- March 18, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI restated Anendnent 3 and nmade a notion to
make it be the first "Resolved" of the bill on page 2, line 15
as follows:

[ BE 1T] RESOLVED that the Alaska State Legislature
requests the reinstatenent of the British Colunbia
noratorium on fish farmng wuntil Al askans can be
assured that all possible steps have been taken to
preclude further escapes of farnmed fish from British
Col unmbi a waters

There bei ng no objection, [Arendnent 3] was adopt ed.
Number 1969

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI [noved to adopt Anendnent 4] on page 2,
line 12, to add | anguage to read:

VWHEREAS Canada is now entering into finfish farmng
for halibut and sablefish

As part of that anmendnent, the next "Wereas" clause on line 13
woul d be changed to read:

WHEREAS the long-term health of Alaska's wld sal non
stocks, as well as halibut and sablefish, is of vital
econonm ¢ and cultural inportance

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI said the reason for the [Amendnent 4] is
that there has been $50 million allocated to finfish farm ng of
hal i but and sablefish in British Colunbia. He had no problem
with its being done on land [in tanks], but the Canadi an program
woul d take place in ocean pens. He expressed his concern about
the same issues for halibut and sablefish as the resolution
speaks of for salnon. The resolution would "just add these two
species to the pot."

Nunmber 2086

CO CHAIR WLSON asked whether there was any objection. There
bei ng none, Amendnent 4 was adopt ed.

Nunber 2108

SUE  ASPELUND, Cordova District Fisherman United (CDFU),
testified via tel econference. She characterized HIR 46 as an
excel l ent resolution. She said it addresses many of the

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 8- March 18, 2002



concerns that Al askans have about fish farns being adjacent to
Al askan wat ers. She called it a piece of good work and urged
its passage.

Nunber 2143

AURA LANDAU, Southeast Al aska Conservation Council (SEACQO),
testified before the commttee. She echoed thanks to the
committee for bringing the resolution forth. She reiterated

that wild salnon are the mainstay of many famlies in Al aska.
She characterized salnon as the "heart of the rainforest”™ from
British Colunbia through Al aska. She said SEACC supports the
| egi sl ati on.

Nunber 2201

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI noved to report CSHIR 46, version 22LS-
1582\J, Uternohle, 2/25/02, as anended, out of conmmttee wth
i ndi vidual recommendations and the zero fiscal note. There
being no objection, CSHIR 46(FSH) was noved out of the House
Special Conm ttee on Fisheries.

ADJ OQURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Special Commttee on Fisheries neeting was adjourned at 4:09
p. m

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 9- March 18, 2002



